
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




ALAMEDA COUNTY HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS 
1404 Franklin Street, Suite 200 


Oakland, CA  94612 
TEL (510) 891-8950 
FAX (510) 832-2139 


www.achch.org 
 


 
STANDING ORDER FOR PROGESTIN-ONLY PILLS (POPs) 
 
Purpose: The purpose of this order is to supplement current policy and procedures by providing guidance to 
Registered Nurses to identify individuals who would benefit from the use progestin-only oral contraceptives to 
prevent unintended pregnancy. 
 
Background: Progestin-only pills (POPs) are an oral contraceptive option for individuals who cannot or prefer 
not to use estrogen containing contraception. Most women of reproductive age can take progestin-only oral 
contraceptives. Norethindrone POPs work by thickening the cervical mucus to prevent sperm migration, 
suppressing ovulation, lowering the peaks of FSH and LH, slowing the movement of eggs through the fallopian 
tubes, and thinning the endometrium.  The efficacy of POPs may be lower than that with other hormonal 
contraceptives and needs to be taken daily, ideally at the same time every day, for maximum efficacy. POPs are 
best for clients with high medication adherence rates. Fertility returns rapidly upon discontinuation.  
 
Scope/Coverage: Under these standing orders, the following types of health care personnel are authorized to 
administer this treatment: 


• Registered Nurses 
 
Procedure: 


• Obtain medical including gynecologic history and STI risk assessment. Refer to STI protocol if client 
requires presumptive treatment or testing for sexually transmitted infection. 


• Discuss history of other contraceptive uses, past and present with client. Present all options 
available for contraception considering client preferences and medical history 


• Obtain current medication list  
• Physical exam or laboratory tests are not necessary before beginning POPs. 
• Obtain date of last menstrual cycle, if known.  
• Rule out current pregnancy, either by LMP date or pregnancy test. 
• Patient Education:  


o The most common side effect associated with POPs is unscheduled bleeding/changes in the 
menstrual cycle. Clients should be counseled that the occurrence of unscheduled bleeding 
does not indicate that the contraceptive method should be discontinued. 


o Other common side effects include increased prevalence of follicular ovarian cysts, acne 
flares, and mood changes. 


o The use of POPs does not prevent the transmission of Sexually Transmitted Infection. 
o It is essential that the norethindrone POP be taken at the same time each day to maximize 


efficacy.  
 If a pill is missed by more than three hours it is advised to use additional 


contraception (condoms or abstinence from sex) for 48 hours after the late dose.  
 Those with a delayed or missed pill should resume taking POPs as soon as possible, 


even if this means that two pills are taken on the same day. 
  Back up contraception can be stopped after pills are taken at the correct time for 


two consecutive days.  
 
 


 







Plan 
• There are several start options for Progestin-only contraceptive pills: 


o Start pills on first day of menses. This method does not require a backup contraceptive. 
o Any day start: back up contraception is needed for seven additional days. 


• Supply client with norethindrone 0.35 mg, with instructions to take one pill by mouth every day, at 
the same time every day. 


• Providing a one-year supply of POPs enhances continuation rates.  
• Attempt follow up with client in one month to assess tolerance to medication, side effects, and 


satisfaction with contraceptive method.  
 
Contraindications: contraindications to POPs include current pregnancy (pregnancies conceived in women 
taking POPs have not been associated with adverse effects), known or suspected breast cancer, undiagnosed 
abnormal uterine bleeding, and liver disease. 
 
References: UpToDate Patient Education: Hormonal Methods of Birth Control: Beyond the Basics.  


 
These orders shall remain in effect for all patients receiving medical care from Alameda County Health Care for 
the Homeless until rescinded.  


 
 


____________________________________    _________________ 
  
Medical Director       Date 


 
 


Effective Date: July 2023 
Next Review: January 2024 
Approved By: Dr. Kathleen Clanon, Medical Director, Alameda County Health Care Services Agency 
 


7/25/2023





				2023-07-25T21:33:09-0700

		Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com












ALAMEDA COUNTY HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS 
1404 Franklin Street, Suite 200 


Oakland, CA  94612 
TEL (510) 891-8950 
FAX (510) 832-2139 


www.achch.org 
 


 
STANDING ORDER FOR THE AMINISTRATION OF COMBINED ESTROGEN-PROGESTIN TRANSDERMAL 
PATCH (ETHINYL ESTRADIOL-NORELGESTROMIN) FOR THE PREVENTION OF UNINTENDED 
PREGNANCY 
 
Purpose: The purpose of this order is to supplement current policy and procedures by providing guidance to 
Registered Nurses to identify individuals who would benefit from the use of combined estrogen-progestin 
transdermal contraceptive patches to prevent unintended pregnancy. 
 
Background: Combined estrogen-progestin transdermal patches are a highly effective contraceptive option that 
contain an estrogen and progestin component and are safe for many women. Transdermal contraceptive 
patches prevent pregnancy by suppressing ovulation by inhibition of luteinizing hormone (LH) and follicle 
stimulating hormone (FSH). Transdermal contraceptive patches also provide protection from pregnancy by 
thinning the endometrial lining, thickening the cervical mucus, and impairment of tubal motility. The patch is 
applied weekly and may offer a more convenient form of contraception with higher adherence rates for many 
clients.  
 
Scope/Coverage: Under these standing orders, the following types of health care personnel are authorized to 
administer this treatment: 


• Registered Nurses 
 
Procedure: 


• Obtain medical including gynecologic history and STI risk assessment. Refer to STI protocol if client 
requires presumptive treatment or testing for sexually transmitted infection. 


• Important factors to screen for include history of venous thromboembolism, history of 
cardiovascular events or disease, history of cancer, liver disease, smoking, diabetes, and history of 
hepatitis C treatment. 


• Obtain Body Mass Index (BMI).  
• Discuss history of other contraceptive uses, past and present with client. Present all options 


available for contraception considering client preferences and medical history 
• Obtain current medication list  
• Physical exam or laboratory tests are not necessary before beginning POPs. 
• Obtain date of last menstrual cycle, if known.  
• Rule out current pregnancy, either by LMP date or pregnancy test. 
• Patient Education:  


o Initiation of a contraceptive transdermal patch is often associated irregular uterine bleeding 
which typically resolves in the first few months of use. Patients should be counseled that the 
occurrence of unscheduled bleeding does not indicate that contraception should be 
discontinued.  


o Other common side effects reported with transdermal patch use include breast tenderness, 
nausea, headache, and dysmenorrhea.  


o Localized reactions from transdermal patch placement are rare. Counsel the client to rotate 
patch placement to reduce the risk of localized reaction. 


o Any combined estrogen-progestin contraceptive is associated with an increased use of 
venous thromboembolism (VTE). The absolute increased risk is low for most women and 







does not outweigh the benefits of contraception, particularly when considering the risk for 
VTE during pregnancy and the post-partum period.  


o There is no evidence that transdermal contraceptive patches are associated with weight 
gain. 


o The use of transdermal contraceptive patches does not prevent the transmission of Sexually 
Transmitted Infection. 
 


Plan 
• Discuss patch initiation. Patch manufactures recommend starting the patch on first day of menstrual 


cycle or the Sunday following the first day of menses. Same day starts are acceptable if pregnancy is 
reasonably excluded. If the patch is initiated more than five days from the onset of menses, 
abstinence or back up contraception should be employed for the first seven days.  


• Discuss patch management: 
o Patches can be applied to the buttock, abdomen, or upper torso (not the breast).  
o A different site should be used each time a new patch is applied and only one patch is to be 


worn at a time. 
o Patches must be changed once a week for three weeks, followed by one patch-free week. 


The patch should be changed/applied on the same day of the week. Reminder systems on a 
phone or calendar are helpful to encourage appropriate application of the patch. Create a 
plan with the client to remember patch changes.  


o If a new patch cycle is delayed at the beginning of a cycle (week one of three), the user 
should apply a new patch as soon as they remember and use a backup method for the first 
seven days. 


o If a patch change is delayed during weeks 2 or 3: 
 If the delay is less than 48 hours, no back up method is needed. Immediately apply 


the next patch. 
 If the patch delay is more than 48 hours, apply the next patch immediately and use 


back up contraception for 7 days. 
o Detailed instructions on managing detached or forgotten patches are included in 


manufacturer instructions. Show the client where to find this information. 
• Supply client with Xulane: ethinyl estradiol 35 mcg and norelgestromine 150 mcg/day with 


instructions to apply one patch each week for 3 weeks, followed by one week that is patch free. No 
more than 7 days should pass during the patch free interval.  


• Providing a one-year supply of contraceptive patches enhances continuation rates.  
• Attempt follow up with client in one month to assess tolerance to medication, side effects, and 


satisfaction with contraceptive method.  
 
Contraindications: Contraindications to combined estrogen-progestin contraceptives, including the transdermal 
contraceptive patch, are largely related to the increased risk for VTE. The CDC and World Health organization list 
medical conditions that represent an “unacceptable health risk” and are an absolute contraindication to 
initiating the patch. These conditions include:  
 


• Age 35 or older and smoking more than 15 cigarettes a day. 
• Multiple risk factors for arterial cardiovascular disease 
• Hypertension 
• History of VTE 
• Ischemic heart disease 
• History of stroke  
• Valvular heart disease  
• Current breast cancer 
• Cirrhosis of the liver, or hepatocellular carcinoma 







• Migraine with aura 
• Diabetes mellitus of over 20 years duration or with nephropathy, retinopathy, or neuropathy. 


 
The CDC and WHO also lists conditions for which the “theoretical or proven health risks usually outweigh the 
advantages” of using the method. In general, transdermal contraceptive patches should not be used in 
individuals with these conditions unless no other method is available or acceptable to the patient and they have 
been counseled about potential risks. Seek medical direction prior to administering patches in any client with 
the following conditions:  
 


• Age 35 or older and smoking less than 15 cigarettes a day 
• Hypertension adequately controlled on medications 
• Past breast cancer and no evidence of current disease for five years 
• Current gallbladder disease 
• Malabsorptive bariatric surgery 
• Superficial venous thrombosis 
• Inflammatory bowel disease. 


 
Additionally, the use of transdermal contraceptive patches is contraindicated in 
 


• Women with a Body Mass Index (BMI) equal to or greater than 30. 
• The patch cannot be used in patients being treated for hepatitis C with combinations containing 


ombitasvir/paritaprevir/ritonavir. Seek medical direction for clients reporting current or recent 
treatment for Hepatitis C. 


•  Individuals with a history of sensitive skin or skin hypersensitivity to transdermal medication 
delivery systems.  


• The patch should not be initiated less than four weeks after childbirth. 
 
References: UpToDate Patient Education: Hormonal Methods of Birth Control: Beyond the Basics.  


 
These orders shall remain in effect for all patients receiving medical care from Alameda County Health Care for 
the Homeless until rescinded.  


 
 


____________________________________    _________________ 
  
Medical Director       Date 


 
 


Effective Date: July 2023 
Next Review: January 2024 
Approved By: Dr. Kathleen Clanon, Medical Director, Alameda County Health Care Services Agency 
 


7/25/2023





				2023-07-25T15:59:47-0700

		Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com












ALAMEDA COUNTY HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS 
1404 Franklin Street, Suite 200 


Oakland, CA  94612 
TEL (510) 891-8950 
FAX (510) 832-2139 


www.achch.org 
 


 
 
STANDING ORDER FOR POINT OF CARE HgA1c TESTS 
 
PURPOSE 


To establish guidelines for the use of CLIA-Waived point of care testing devices to assist in screening for diabetes 
mellitus for patients served by ACHCH. 


SCOPE/COVERAGE: The following types of health care personnel are authorized to execute this standing order: 
All employed or contracted Registered Nurses. 


Background: Glycated Hemoglobin (HbA1C) measures glucose bonded to hemoglobin in red blood cells and is 
used to estimate glucose values over time. The HbAIC test does not require any prior preparation by the client 
(no fasting or medication abstinence) and is not impacted by caloric intake or the time of day.  


The American Diabetes Association recommends testing for diabetes or prediabetes in adults with body mass 
index equal or greater than 25 or 23 in Asian Americans or those who have one or more risk factors for diabetes. 
Risk factors include having been diagnosed as prediabetic, being overweight, age 45 or older, have a primary 
family member with type 2 diabetes, sedentary lifestyle, history of gestational diabetes, and non-alcoholic fatty 
liver disease. Certain racial and ethnic groups are also at increased risk of diabetes including African Americans, 
Hispanics/Latinos, American Indians, or Alaskan Natives.  


HbA1C levels and corresponding classification of diabetes is as follows:  


Normal 
A1C = or < 5.6% 


Prediabetes or increased risk for diabetes 
A1C 5.7 – 6.4% 


Diabetes Mellitus 
A1C > or = to 6.5% 


The diagnosis of diabetes must be confirmed by repeat measurement, repeating the same or different test for 
confirmation.  


Standing Order: 


I. Perform point of care (POC) HgA1c test in all new patients without evidence of diabetes screening using 
HgA1c tests in the last year, and at least every 3-5 years for routine screening in established pts. 


Procedures: 


I. Clinical staff performs the POC test using appropriate materials (e.g. gloves, alcohol swabs, bandage, 
gauze or cotton balls) and aseptic technique following manufacturer's instructions.   


II. If A1c Result is not determined or errors encountered, repeat POC test and ensure manufacturer 
recommendations are adhered to.  







III. If A1c Result is <6.5%, no additional testing as this is a negative screening. Provide ongoing education to 
reduce the risk of developing diabetes. Document results in health record.  


IV. If A1c Result is >6.5%, suggest presumptive positive. Order and perform a lab draw for confirmation of 
HgA1c testing and a comprehensive metabolic panel. Perform patient education on management of 
diabetes, symptoms, and its complications. Record results in patient record.  


V. If confirmation testing is performed, develop a patient care plan to deliver confirmation results when 
available, and record confirmation test results in the patient record. 


A. If confirmation testing indicates A1c >5.7%, suggest recheck in 6 months and support linkage to 
provider.  


B. If confirmation testing indicates A1c >6.5%, recheck in 3-6 months and support pt with linkage 
to a provider. 


Storage and Supply Maintenance: 


I. Devices and related supplies are stored following manufacturer instructions.  If stored under conditions 
that require modification of expiry, a beyond use date label is affixed to each individual device. 


II. Inventory and supplies maintained by the Medical Assistant (see P&P Medication Prescribing, 
Dispensing, and Administration) 


Waste: 


I. All materials shall be appropriately discarded (see P&P Pharmaceutical and Other Medical Waste). 
II. Used cartridges, test strips, and most other supplies can be discarded in trash.  Lancets in sharps 


containers.  


 


These orders shall remain in effect for all patients receiving medical care from Alameda County Health Care for 
the Homeless until rescinded.  
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________                      _________________________________ 
Medical Director                     Date 


 
 
Effective Date: July 2023 
Next Review: January 2024 
Approved By: Dr. Kathleen Clanon, Medical Director, Alameda County Health Care Services Agency 


7/25/2023





				2023-07-25T15:58:56-0700

		Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com












ALAMEDA COUNTY HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS 
1404 Franklin Street, Suite 200 


Oakland, CA  94612 
TEL (510) 891-8950 
FAX (510) 832-2139 


www.achch.org 
 


 
 


 
ACHCH Commission Clinical Quality Sub-Committee Meeting Agenda 


July 31,2023 
9:30 – 11:00 am 


 
I. Welcome          AB 


 
II. Minutes from May 1, 2023 Clinical Quality Sub-Committee Meeting [Attached Report] 


 
III. Staffing          


1. ACHCH Staff        AB; 5 Minutes 
2. Clinical Provider Training Rotations – No Update     


 
IV. Quarterly Quality Report – Highlights 


 
1. Service Utilization Data [Appendix A]     CZ; 10 Minutes 
2. Patient Demographic Data [Appendix B] 
3. Staff Education and Best Practices 


A. RN Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs):   AB; 30 Minutes 
1. A1c Test; 
2. Oral birth control; 
3. DepoProvera; 
4. Emergency contraception; 
5. Family planning; 
6. Progesterone-only medications; 
7. Transdermal contraceptive patch  


B. Pharmacy Updates      AB; 5 Minutes 
 


4. Incident Reports        AB; 5 Minutes 
 
 


V. Next Meeting: October 30, 2023: 9:30 AM – 11:00 AM 
 








Alameda County Health Care for the Homeless        
Quarterly Quality Assurance/Improvement Report, January – March 2023             1 


Alameda County Health Care for the Homeless Commission 
Committee Report 


 


Committee: 


☐ Executive: Oversees Commission structure organized and moving; provides strategic guidance to 
staff. Meets monthly. 


☒ Clinical Quality: Recommends clinical measures to the full Commission; informs medical, dental, 
mental health, SUD programming. Meets quarterly. 


☐ Budget and Finance: Monitors HRSA grant budget vs actuals; recommends budgetary actions to the 
full Commission. Meets quarterly. 


 


Commissioner Liaison to the full Commission: 


• Michelle Schneidermann, MD 


Last meeting date: 
January 30, 2023                                                                                                                                     


Current meeting date: 
May 1, 2023 


Commissioners in attendance: 


• Shannon Smith-Bernardin, PhD, MSN, RN 


• Gerard Jenkins, MD 


ACHCH staff in attendance: 


• Aislinn Bird, MD  


• Casey Zirbel 


• Qinglin Wu 


• Luella Penserga, MPH, Deputy Director 


Absent:   


• Michelle Schneidermann, MD,  


 


1) Items discussed: 
 


a) Staff asked that Commissioners refer to the ACHCH Quality report in the meeting packet. 
b) Commissioners reviewed and approved Minutes from prior meeting.   


 
c) Dr. Aislinn Bird and Deputy Direct Luella Penserga provided ACHCH staffing updates.  


i) Physician III offer has been made and tentatively accepted.  
(1) Position would begin in August 2023~; more details will be provided in the months 


leading up to onboarding. 
ii) Registered Nurse (RN) II offer has been extended and accepted. 


(1) Position will start May 15, 2023 and will be working on respite service coordination. 
iii) Financer Manager offer has been extended and accepted. 


(1) Position will start on May 15, 2023 and will lead the Budget/Finance Sub-Committee 
activities.   


 
d) Dr. Aislinn Bird provided information regarding Clinical Provider Training Rotations.  


i) Both of the following programs involve placement of medical school residents and fellows 


within ACHCH operations pursuant to written agreements.  


(1) Stanford Healthcare Psychiatry Residency; [No Placements at this time]  


(2) UCSF Public Psychiatry Fellowship  [No Placements at this time] 







Alameda County Health Care for the Homeless        
Quarterly Quality Assurance/Improvement Report, January – March 2023             2 


 


e) Casey Zirbel presented utilization and demographic data from ACHCH programs that are 


included in the Report’s Appendix A. The data reflected in this report includes services provided 


from January 1, 2023 through February 28, 2023.  


i) Commissioners requested additional analysis of Patient Ethnicity & Race, which will be 


incorporated into future reports.  


 


f) Dr. Bird presented the OTC Medication documentation package to commissioners, related to 


the revised RN Standing Orders. 


i) Commissioners approved the revisions to the Standing Orders/Protocols for RNs, will be 


routed to Dr. Clanon for signature/final approval.  


 


g) Dr. Bird presented on information about ACHCH Harm Reduction efforts. 


i) ACHCH staff has been coordinating the installation of naloxone distribution kits in various 


sites across the County. Boxes that dispense these kits are currently being installed or are 


already installed at sites via ACHCH’s efforts. 


ii) Dr. Bird noted that grant funds will be utilized to support three Substance-Use Navigators 


(SUNs), which will be hired by external partners. 


 


h) Dr. Bird presented on two Incident Reports for the period of 1/1/23 – 3/31/23, both of which 
were for Street Health. ACHCH Staff discussed and reviewed these incidents with 
Commissioners, including any follow-up actions taken by ACHCH. 
 


  
 


2) Next Meeting:  July 31, 2023, from 9:30am – 11:00am  








   
 


Alameda County Health Care for the Homeless 
Quarterly Quality Assurance/Improvement Report      1 


ALAMEDA COUNTY HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS 
1404 Franklin Street, Suite 200 


Oakland, CA 94612 
TEL (510) 891-8950 
FAX (510) 832-2139 


www.achch.org 


 
Date: 7/31/2023 


 
To: ACHCH Commission Clinical Quality Sub-Committee 


 
From: Aislinn Bird, MD, ACHCH Director of Integrated Care; Casey Zirbel, QI/QA Analyst 


Re: Quarterly ACHCH Quality Assurance/Improvement Report – April to June 2023 


 
The following memo provides an overview of ACHCH’s QA/QI activities to-date. Generally, the purpose of 
the ACHCH QI/QA program is to address: 


 
A. The quality and utilization of ACHCH’s directly provided, and contracted services: 


i. community-based and patient-directed  
ii. comprehensive, culturally competent, high-quality primary health care services 
iii. integrate access to pharmacy, mental health, substance use disorder, and oral health services 


B. Support adherence to evidence-based clinical guidelines, standards of care, and standards of 
practice through provider/staff education and dissemination of resources and tools; 


C. Address patient satisfaction and patient grievance processes;  
D. Address patient safety, including adverse events and follow up actions as necessary; 
E. Ensure that all ACHCH staff and contractors who provide patient care are credentialed and 


privileged; and 
F. Ensure the patient information and confidentiality is maintained and safeguarded. 


 
1. Service Utilization / Demographic Data Report 
 


ACHCH is required to produce and share reports on QI/QA to support decision-making and oversight by key 
management staff and by the ACHCH Commission regarding the provision of ACHCH health center services. 
Refer to the Appendices A & B, attached to this report, for ACHCH service utilization covering the period of April 
2023 – June 2023 (Quarter 2 of Calendar Year 2023) and patient demographic data for the period of February 
2023 – April 2023. Data include both ACHCH directly provided services by ACHCH employees, and contracted 
services with community providers. Appendix A includes summarized patient and encounter data by Brick & 
Mortar Primary Care & Specialty Clinics, Shelter Health Team, and Street Health Teams.  


 
2. Staff Education and Best Practices 


 
The following trainings and resources were developed and/or offered by ACHCH in the past three months. 
A. Trainings and Technical Support Offered to ACHCH Providers/Staff: 


i. ACHCH RN Group Supervision: Bi-monthly supervision with all ACHCH RNs continues, 
facilitated by Katie Hayes, NP and Aislinn Bird, MD. This quarter we focused on reviewing and 
implementing the RN SOPs approved by Dr. Clanon and the Clinical Commission 
Subcommittee, problem solved around obtaining labs in the field and discussed the 
mandatory weekly Grayken Center for Addiction Training and Technical Assistance Harm 
Reduction trainings.  


B. Trainings and Technical Support Offered to Contracted Providers and Other Community Organizations: 
i. ACBH: Mechanisms of Action and New Treatments for Major Depression. June 1, 2023. 


Presenter: Dr. Schatzberg. Dr. Schatzberg reviewed main mechanisms of action of 
antidepressants and what they tell us about risk/benefit of specific agents for clinical practice 
currently and in the near future. 


ii. ACBH: The Self-Assessment for Modification of Anti-Racism Tool (SMART):  Addressing 
Structural Racism in Community Mental Health Wednesday, June 28, 2023. Presenter: Rachel 



http://www.achch.org/





   
 


Alameda County Health Care for the Homeless 
Quarterly Quality Assurance/Improvement Report      2 


Talley, MD and Sosunmolu Shoyinka, MD This training will introduce participants to the Self-
Assessment for Modification of Anti-Racism Tool (SMART), an innovative self-directed quality 
improvement tool developed by the American Association for Community Psychiatry (AACP) 
to assist community mental health organizations in addressing structural racism.  


iii. ACHCH Monthly Training: Exploring & Understanding Bias. July 26, 2023. Presenter: Dr. 
Kristee Haggins The general goal is to improve the effectiveness of participants in their 
approach to working with unhoused clients and raise their awareness of the impact of bias. 
The workshop is designed to enhance attendees overall professional growth and their 
successful application, consideration, and development of resources and services for 
unhoused community members in Alameda County. 


iv. OHCC: Targeted Universalism July 19, 2023. Presenters: Chole Greene, Dusty Olson. Goals 
included: Explore targeted universalism as an anti-racist, justice oriented framework that 
supports communities to set and meet universal goals through targeted processes and 
Discuss the five main components of targeted universalism and the benefits of the 
framework. 


v. OHCC Racial Equity Training: Self and Collective Care. May 17, 2023. Presenter: Chole Greene 
and Dusty Olson. Part of an ongoing Racial Equity Training Series. This session’s goals 
included: 1. Discuss the importance of care for self and the collective and 2. Practice care and 
rest.  


vi. ACHCH Monthly Training: Homeless Service Providers as Grief Survivors: May 24, 2023. 
Presenters: Pai Duch and Andrea Henderson. Presenters, Andrea Henderson and Pai Duch 
shared their own personal experiences of provider loss and what they have learned from the 
creation of the Mental Health Providers as Grief Survivors drop-in group. They discussed the 
prevalence of client loss in the field, provide suggestions for agencies on how to develop 
practices to respond to client loss, and explore how to continue to honor the lives of the 
clients we have served.  


vii. Opioid Overdose Responder & Naloxone Training. Trainer: Diane Del Pozo, RN. Offered bi-
monthly. Alameda County Emergency Medical Services (EMS) will start offering these 
trainings to the community starting in the fall of 2023. ACHCH will continue to offer Naloxone 
trainings in certain circumstances, especially for organizations who serve people experiencing 
homelessness.  


viii. California Street Medicine Collaborative: Clinician's Learning Circle. Second Wednesday of the 
month.  Facilitator: Camilo Zaks. Monthly training for street medicine providers across 
California to share best practices and discuss difficult clinical cases, attended by the ACHCH 
RNs and Psychiatrist.  
 


C. Conference Presentations by ACHCH Staff 
i. ACBH Bright Young Minds Conference, “Mentor for a Minute”. May 5, 2023. Wale Arshad, NP, 


participated in this career panel for the second year in a row.  The BYM conference is 
designed for high school students in our county to learn about a variety of careers in 
behavioral health, and gain some skills about current mental health topics that are important 
to students. 


ii. California Street Medicine Collaboration- Clinicians Learning Circle. Title: Street Medicine- 
Guiding Principles and Clinical Pearls. Presenter: Aislinn Bird, MD. June 14, 2023. This 
presentation highlighted guiding principles in providing street psychiatry, including clinical 
pearls for diagnosing and treating in the field.   


ACHCH training resources are available on the ACHCH website on the Learn page. 
 


3. Quality Improvement Report Back:  
i. Street Health:  


a. Work this quarter included: 1. Developing the ACHCH Street Health team modification plan 2. 
Developing a transition plan for Zone 11 patients to the new LifeLong Street Medicine team  


ii. Shelter Health:  
a. Work this quarter included: 1. Finalizing the social services RBA measures 2. Naloxone 


dispensing boxes for shelters and drop-in centers 3. Dispensing air filters to shelters  
iii. Harm Reduction:  


a.  Work this month included: 1. CHCS Learning Collaborative with ACHCH, Cardea Health, BACS 
and Bridge Clinic 2. Alameda County Drug Checking Program 3. Harm Reduction Supplies 4. 
Harm Reduction P&Ps 5. Harm Reduction Trainings  


iv. Pharmacy 
a. Work this month included: 1. Updating the pharmacy and medical supply ordering P&P 2. 


Spending down the New Oakland Pharmacy budget before the end of the fiscal year. 3. 



https://www.achch.org/trainingresources.html





   
 


Alameda County Health Care for the Homeless 
Quarterly Quality Assurance/Improvement Report      3 


Renewed the ACHCH Pharmacy 4. Seth Gomez, PharmD, completed the QI 2023 Pharmacy 
Audit, which was reviewed with the ACHCH RNs.  


b. Corrective actions completed: 1. Reviewing the SOP re: the medication data sheet, database 
documentation and removing expired medications. 2. Update medication storage bins to 
highlight which medications require special disposal and post disposal instructions. 3. Identify 
missing labels on medications administered.   


 
 


D. Patient Safety, Including Adverse Events 
 


a. The following are incidents involving ACHCH patients (directly provided care). Consistent with 
ACHCH’s incident reporting policy and procedure, ACHCH reviews all incident reports immediately, 
and tracks the following information: date and month, number of incidents by ACHCH team, type 
of incident, detail, resolution, recommendation included, and follow-up needed.   


b. In June 2023, the ACHCH Incident Reporting Form was updated to clarify the different types of 
incidents (updated definitions below). The new form was reviewed at the Street Health and Shelter 
Health Team meetings and was emailed to all direct service providers.  


 


*See below for the data definitions used by ACHCH to define incidents involving patients.  
 


Definitions: 
1. Incident: An event or circumstance that could have resulted or did result in unnecessary harm 
to a patient [source: World Health Organization] 
2. No harm: These include incidents that need to be communicated across the Health Care for the 
Homeless health center that may impact the collective safety of staff (e.g., a street health team 
approaches an encampment where they have provided services in the past and an encampment 
resident warns them to stay away saying, ‘It’s not a good time to come here.” 
3. Near miss: Those involved do not experience serious injury but could have been harmed by the 
potential risk detected. An example of this type of incident is if a patient stumbled over a box 
left on the office floor but does not become injured. 
4. Adverse event: A serious, undesirable and usually unanticipated patient safety event that 
resulted in harm to the patient but does not rise to the level of being a Sentinel Event including 
an event in which care resulted in an undesirable clinical outcome-an outcome not caused by 
underlying disease, or a medical mistake. An example of this is a staff member accidently giving 
a patient the wrong vaccine. 
5. Sentinel event: Unexpected occurrences involving death or serious physical or psychological 


injury, or risk thereof. Serious injury specifically includes loss of limb or function. 
 
E. Patient Satisfaction 
 


A. ACHCH directly provided services.  
The ACHCH patient experience survey was shortened to one page and approved by the 


INCIDENT REPORTS* 
April 1, 2023- June 30, 2023  [Q2, CY23] 


Program Area Incidents, by type Description 


ACHCH Street Health Team 


1. No Harm = 0 
2. Near Miss = 0 
3. Adverse Events = 0 
4. Sentinel Events = 1 


Sentinel Event – On April 6, 2023, the ACHCH 
Street Health team reported a Sentinel Event 
when they learned during outreach that a 
patient died in the hospital for an unknown 
reason. ACHCH staff was informed of, but not 
involved with, the sentinel event.  


Street Health Incidents Reported, TOTAL 1  


ACHCH Shelter Health Team 


1. No Harm = 0 
2. Near Miss = 0 
3. Adverse Events = 0 
4. Sentinel Events = 0 


N/A 


Shelter Health Incidents Reported, 
TOTAL 


0 
 


GRAND TOTAL 1  







   
 


Alameda County Health Care for the Homeless 
Quarterly Quality Assurance/Improvement Report      4 


CCAB. A nonclinical staff member accompanied street and shelter health teams to 
administer the survey. The survey was offered to street health team patients between 
4/25/23-4/27/23 and shelter health patients in mid-May. A total of 4 shelters received the 
survey: Men on the Way (Hayward), City Team (Oakland), Dos de Febrero (Oakland), 
Sunrise Village (Fremont). A total of 32 surveys were completed. Results:  


 
Did you feel respected? 


  1 2 3 4 5 
N         32 
Percentage (%)         100% 


Average: 5 
How well did we listen to you? 


  1 2 3 4 5 


N     1 1 30 


Percentage (%)     3% 3% 94% 


Average: 4.91 
Did we communicate in a clear and understandable way? 


  1 2 3 4 5 


N     1   31 


Percentage (%)     3%   97% 


Average: 4.94 
Do you feel like the care you get from us is helping you head in a positive direction? 


  1 2 3 4 5 


N     1 2 29 


Percentage (%)     3% 6% 91% 


Average: 4.88 
 
B.  ACHCH contracted services.  


i.  Use of ACHCH patient experience survey is low. Contractors are using the Consumer Assessment 
of Healthcare Providers (CAHPS) and Community Health Center Network (CHCN) patient 
satisfaction survey. 


 
F. Patient Grievances 


 
a. No patient grievances have been received for this quarter (4/1/2023 – 6/30/2023).  


 
G. ACHCH Credentialing, Privileging 


 
a. ACHCH providers (directly provided services): 


i. Credentialing process is done through Alameda County’s CAQH credentialing portal. Camila 
Curtiss-Contreras, new RNII was added to CAQH. All staff files are current. 


ii. Quarterly Clinician Assessments. ACHCH conducts QI/QA assessments (peer review) on a 
quarterly basis to inform the modification of the provision of health center services. Chart 
reviews are conducted quarterly by the following peer reviewers: 
 


ACHCH Staff Quarterly Peer Reviews 


Clinicians Peer Reviewer Q1 ‘23 
(Jan – Mar) 


Q2 ’23 
(Apr – June) 


Q3 ‘23 
(Jul – Sep) 


Aislinn Bird, MD Vicente Gonzaga, MD (ACBH locum 
tenens) 


Complete Complete Oct ‘23 


Wale Arshad, NP Aislinn Bird, MD Complete Complete Oct ‘23 
Phoebe Rossiter, RN  
  


Consultant: Catherine Hayes, Cardea 
Health 


Complete In Process Oct ‘23 


Diane Del Pozo, RN Consultant: Catherine Hayes, Cardea 
Health 


Complete In Process Oct ‘23 


 
 



https://www.caqh.org/solutions/credentialing-solutions-suite





   
 


Alameda County Health Care for the Homeless 
Quarterly Quality Assurance/Improvement Report      5 


H. Retrievable Health Record, Protecting and Safeguarding Patient Information 
 


a. HCH Database. ACHCH is working on improvements to the HCH client database: (1) interface for end-users, (2) 
ingestion of contractor data to reduce errors (3) reports and (4) preparing patient data for migration to Epic.  
 


b. Epic EHR. ACHCH is meeting weekly with Alameda Health System to plan for AHS to extend its Epic 
electronic health record system (via Community Connect) to ACHCH for ACHCH directly-provided care.  





		ALAMEDA COUNTY HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS

		1. Service Utilization / Demographic Data Report

		2. Staff Education and Best Practices

		3. Quality Improvement Report Back:

		D. Patient Safety, Including Adverse Events

		E. Patient Satisfaction

		F. Patient Grievances

		G. ACHCH Credentialing, Privileging

		H. Retrievable Health Record, Protecting and Safeguarding Patient Information








Appendix A - Utilization Data Summary Tables, Total Patients and Encounters, by Type, By Provider, by Location


Provider Location


Total Enabling 
Svc 


Encounters (3 
month)


Total Medical 
Encounters (3 


month)


Total encounters 
(3 month)


Total 
unduplicated 


patients (3 
month)


Total # Encounters 
per patient (3 


months)
Period


Alameda Health System AHS Eastmont Wellness 383 440 823 251 3.3 Apr. '23 - June '23
Alameda Health System AHS Hayward Wellness 120 184 304 106 2.9 Apr. '23 - June '23
Alameda Health System AHS Newark Wellness 107 139 246 79 3.1 Apr. '23 - June '23
Alameda Health System AHS Primary Care 1925 736 2661 645 4.1 Apr. '23 - June '23
LifeLong Medical Care Trust Clinic (Downtown Oakland) 1587 2771 4358 957 4.6 Apr. '23 - June '23
Alameda Health System AHS Specialty Clinics & Other 4172 1141 5313 878 6.1 Apr. '23 - June '23
Alameda Health System AHS Highland Bridge Clinic 388 199 587 230 2.6 Apr. '23 - June '23


Alameda Health System AHS Highland Dental 35 37 72 42 1.7 Apr. '23 - June '23


Provider Location


Total Enabling 
Svc 


Encounters (3 
month)


Total Medical 
Encounters (3 


month)


Total encounters 
(3 month)


Total 
unduplicated 


patients (3 
month)


Total # Encounters 
per patient (3 


months)
Period


Abode Z1
Zone 1 (East County: Tri Valley cities, and 
parts of Unincorporated County) 27 42 69 32 2.2 Feb. '23 - Apr. '23


Bay Area Community Health (BACH) Z2
Zone 2 (South County: Fremont and Newark)


338 102 420 138 3.0 Feb. '23 - Apr. '23


Tiburcio Vasquez Health Center Z3
Zone 3 (Hayward, Union City, and parts of 
Unincorporated County) 290 158 448 95 4.7 Apr. '23 - June '23


Tiburcio Vasquez Health Center Z4
Zone 4 (Unincorporated County and parts of 
Hayward) 574 94 668 152 4.4 Apr. '23 - June '23


Tiburcio Vasquez Health Center Z5 Zone 5 (San Leandro and Alameda) 405 194 599 136 4.4 Apr. '23 - June '23
Lifelong Medical Care Z9 Zone 9 (Oakland) 368 147 515 120 4.3 Apr. '23 - June '23
Lifelong Medical Care Z10 Zone 10 (Oakland) 181 207 388 124 3.1 Apr. '23 - June '23
Alameda County HCH Z11 Zone 11 (Oakland) 300 130 430 152 2.8 Apr. '23 - June '23
Lifelong Medical Care Z12 Zone 12 (West Oakland, Emeryville) 338 225 563 143 3.9 Apr. '23 - June '23
Lifelong Medical Care Z13 Zone 13 (Berkeley, North Oakland) 132 125 257 83 3.1 Apr. '23 - June '23
Lifelong Medical Care Z14 Zone 14 (Berkeley, Albany) 417 259 676 134 5.0 Apr. '23 - June '23


Total Enabling 
Svc 


Encounters (3 
month)


Total Medical 
Encounters (3 


month)


Total encounters 
(3 month)


Total 
unduplicated 


patients (3 
month)


Total # Encounters 
per patient (3 


months)
Period


304 157 461 126 3.7 Apr. '23 - June '23
347 51 398 246 1.6 Apr. '23 - June '23


0 439 439 167 2.6 Apr. '23 - June '23
0 84 84 84 1.0 Mar. '23 - May '23


Provider/Location


AHS: Mobile Health Clinics
ACHCH Shelter Health Team


Dental Referrals: Onsite Mobile
Vision Referrals: Fruitvale Optometry


383
120


107
1925


1587
4172


388
35


440
184


139
736


2771
1141


199
37


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


AHS Eastmont Wellness
AHS Hayward Wellness


AHS Newark Wellness
AHS Primary Care


Trust Clinic (Downtown Oakland)
AHS Specialty Clinics & Other


AHS Highland Bridge Clinic
AHS Highland Dental


Primary & Specialty Care: Percentage of Patient Encounters 
by Type, by Provider/Location (Apr. - Jun. '23)


Total Enabling Svc Encounters (3 month) Total Medical Encounters (3 month)


27


338


290


574


405


368


181


300


338


132


417


42


102


158


94


194


147


207


130


225


125


259


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Abode Z1


Bay Area Community Health (BACH) Z2


Tiburcio Vasquez Health Center Z3


Tiburcio Vasquez Health Center Z4


Tiburcio Vasquez Health Center Z5


Lifelong Medical Care Z9


Lifelong Medical Care Z10


Alameda County HCH Z11


Lifelong Medical Care Z12


Lifelong Medical Care Z13


Lifelong Medical Care Z14


Street Health: Percentage of Patient Encounters by Type, by 
Provider/Location (Apr. - Jun. '23)*


Total Enabling Svc Encounters (3 month) Total Medical Encounters (3 month)


304
347


157
51


439
84


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


AHS: Mobile Health Clinics
ACHCH Shelter Health Team


Dental Referrals: Onsite Mobile
Vision Referrals: Fruitvale Optometry


Shelter Health: Percentage of Patient Encounters by Type, 
by Provider/Location (Apr. - Jun. '23)*


Total Enabling Svc Encounters (3 month) Total Medical Encounters (3 month)







Provider/Location Total encounters 
(3 month)


Total unduplicated 
patients (3 month)


Average # Encounters 
per patient (3 month)


AHS Primary Care 2,661 645 4.1
AHS Eastmont Wellness 823 251 3.3
AHS Hayward Wellness 304 106 2.9
AHS Newark Wellness 246 79 3.1
LifeLong Medical Care - Trust Clinic 4,358 957 4.6


AHS Highland Bridge Clinic 587 230 2.6
AHS Highland Dental 72 42 1.7
AHS Specialty Clinics & Other 5,313 878 6.1


Table B1: Brick and Mortar Primary Care (2023) - TOTAL PATIENTS & ENCOUNTERS


Table B2: AHS Specialty Clinics (2023) - TOTAL PATIENTS & ENCOUNTERS


0


1,000


2,000


3,000


4,000


5,000


6,000


Total encounters (3 month)
AHS Eastmont Wellness 823
AHS Hayward Wellness 304
AHS Highland Bridge Clinic 587
AHS Highland Dental 72
AHS Newark Wellness 246
AHS Primary Care 2,661
AHS Specialty Clinics & Other 5,313
LifeLong Medical Care - Trust Clinic 4,358


Total Brick & Mortar Primary Care & Specialty Care Patient 
Encounters, by Provider 


(April - June 2023; Q2 CY23)


0.0


1.0


2.0


3.0


4.0


5.0


6.0


7.0


Average # Encounters per patient (3 month)
AHS Eastmont Wellness 3.3
AHS Hayward Wellness 2.9
AHS Highland Bridge Clinic 2.6
AHS Highland Dental 1.7
AHS Newark Wellness 3.1
AHS Primary Care 4.1
AHS Specialty Clinics & Other 6.1
LifeLong Medical Care - Trust Clinic 4.6


Average Brick & Mortar Primary Care & Specialty Care Encounters Per 
Patient, by Provider 


(April - June 2023; Q2 CY23)







Zone Provider Region
Total encounters 


(3 month)
Total unduplicated patients 


(3 month)
Average # Encounters per 


patient (3 month)


1 Abode Z1 East County: Tri Valley cities, and parts of Unincorporated County 69 32 2.2
2 Bay Area Community Health (BACH) Z2 South County: Fremont and Newark 420 138 3.0
3 Tiburcio Vasquez Health Center Z3 Hayward, Union City, and parts of Unincorporated County 448 95 4.7
4 Tiburcio Vasquez Health Center Z4 Unincorporated County and parts of Hayward 668 152 4.4
5 Tiburcio Vasquez Health Center Z5 San Leandro and Alameda 599 136 4.4
9 Lifelong Medical Care Z9 Oakland 515 120 4.3


10 Lifelong Medical Care Z10 Oakland 388 124 3.1
11 Alameda County HCH Z11 Oakland 430 152 2.8
12 Lifelong Medical Care Z12 West Oakland, Emeryville 563 143 3.9
13 Lifelong Medical Care Z13 Berkeley, North Oakland 257 83 3.1
14 Lifelong Medical Care Z14 Berkeley, Albany 676 134 5.0


Table B5: Street Health Teams (2023) -  TOTAL PATIENTS & ENCOUNTERS


0


200


400


600


800


Total
encounters
(3 month)


Abode Z1 69
Bay Area Community Health (BACH) Z2 420
Tiburcio Vasquez Health Center Z3 448
Tiburcio Vasquez Health Center Z4 668
Tiburcio Vasquez Health Center Z5 599
Lifelong Medical Care Z9 515
Lifelong Medical Care Z10 388
Alameda County HCH Z11 430
Lifelong Medical Care Z12 563
Lifelong Medical Care Z13 257


Pa
tie


nt
 E


nc
ou


nt
er


s,
 b


y 
M


on
th


Total Street Health Patient Encounters, by Provider 
(April - June 2023; Q2 CY23)*


0.0


1.0


2.0


3.0


4.0


5.0


6.0


Average # Encounters per patient (3 month)
Abode Z1 2.2
Bay Area Community Health (BACH) Z2 3.0
Tiburcio Vasquez Health Center Z3 4.7
Tiburcio Vasquez Health Center Z4 4.4
Tiburcio Vasquez Health Center Z5 4.4
Lifelong Medical Care Z9 4.3
Lifelong Medical Care Z10 3.1
Alameda County HCH Z11 2.8
Lifelong Medical Care Z12 3.9
Lifelong Medical Care Z13 3.1
Lifelong Medical Care Z14 5.0


Pa
tie


nt
 E


nc
ou


nt
er


s,
 b


y 
M


on
th


Average Street Health Encounters Per Patient, by Provider 
(April - June 2023; Q2 CY23)*







Provider/Location
Total encounters (3 


month)
Total unduplicated 
patients (3 month)


Average # Encounters 
per patient (3 month)


ACHCH Shelter Health Team 461 126 3.7
AHS: Mobile Health Clinics 398 246 1.6


Provider/Location
Total encounters (3 


month)
Total unduplicated 
patients (3 month)


Average # Encounters 
per patient (3 month)


Dental: Onsite Mobile 439 167 2.6


Vision: Fruitvale Optometry 84 84 1.0


Table B3a: Shelter Health (2023) – TOTAL PATIENTS & ENCOUNTERS


Table B3b: Referrals by HCH Shelter Health (2023) – TOTAL PATIENTS & ENCOUNTERS


0
50


100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450
500


Total encounters (3 month)
ACHCH Shelter Health


Team 461


AHS: Mobile Health Clinics 398
Dental: Onsite Mobile 439
Vision: Fruitvale


Optometry 84


To
ta


l P
at


ie
nt


 
En


co
un


te
rs


 (3
 m


on
th


s)


Total Shelter Health Patient Encounters, by Provider (April 
- June 2023; Q2 CY23)*


0.0
0.5
1.0
1.5
2.0
2.5
3.0
3.5
4.0


Average # Encounters per patient
(3 month)


ACHCH Shelter Health Team 3.7
AHS: Mobile Health Clinics 1.6
Dental: Onsite Mobile 2.6
Vision: Fruitvale Optometry 1.0


Av
er


ag
e 


# 
Pe


r P
at


ie
nt


Average Shelter Health Encounters Per Patient, by Provider
(April - June 2023; Q2 CY23)*







Provider/Location CITY Total encounters (3 month)
Total unduplicated patients 


(3 month)
# Encounters per patient period


Alameda Food Bank Alameda 3 1 3.0 Q2 CY2023


----Alameda Food Bank / Immanuel Lutheran Church Alameda 6 2 3.0 Q2 CY2023


Village of Love Alameda 14 4 3.5 Q2 CY2023


Berkeley Library Berkeley 63 14 4.5 Q2 CY2023


Multicultural Institute Berkeley 22 6 3.7 Q2 CY2023


First Presbyterian Church of Hayward Castro Valley 69 20 3.5 Q2 CY2023


HEDCO Hayward 15 5 3.0 Q2 CY2023


South Hayward Parish Hayward 29 9 3.2 Q2 CY2023


LavaMae Pop-Up Care Village Oakland - Downtown 9 3 3.0 Q2 CY2023


Magnolia House Women's Recovery Oakland - Downtown 11 3 3.7 Q2 CY2023


Oakland Library Oakland - Downtown 58 17 3.4 Q2 CY2023


Homebase (“Private Site”) Oakland - East 65 19 3.4 Q2 CY2023


Oak Days Hotel Oakland - East 21 6 3.5 Q2 CY2023


Mandela Cabins Oakland - West 76 21 3.6 Q2 CY2023


AHS Mobile Health Van TOTAL 461 126 3.7 Q2 CY2023


ACHCH Shelter Health Utilization, Q2 CY2023 
[April 1 - June 30, 2023]


Provider/Location CITY Total encounters (3 month)
Total unduplicated patients 


(3 month)
# Encounters per patient period


Midway  - Shelter Health Alameda 2 2 1.0 Q2 CY2023


Fremont Main Library  - Shelter Health Fremont 8 8 1.0 Q2 CY2023


South County Wellness  - Shelter Health Fremont 17 12 1.4 Q2 CY2023


Sunrise Village  - Shelter Health Fremont 25 13 1.9 Q2 CY2023


Cronin House - Shelter Health Hayward 22 16 1.4 Q2 CY2023


Men on the Way - Shelter Health Hayward 36 11 3.3 Q2 CY2023


New Hope Fellowship  - Shelter Health Hayward 52 37 1.4 Q2 CY2023


New Hope Onsite Dental Case Management SH Hayward 36 30 1.2 Q2 CY2023


SCHP (South County Homeless Project) - Shelter Hea Hayward 2 2 1.0 Q2 CY2023


Second Chance Newark  - Shelter Health Newark 15 7 2.1 Q2 CY2023


2 de Febrero - Shelter Health Oakland 30 16 1.9 Q2 CY2023


Henry Robinson MSC - Shelter Health Oakland 15 10 1.5 Q2 CY2023


La Clinica Dental Case Management -SH Oakland 19 8 2.4 Q2 CY2023


Magnolia House - Shelter Health Oakland 3 3 1.0 Q2 CY2023


Street Level Health Project  - Shelter Health Oakland 8 7 1.1 Q2 CY2023


City Team Ministries - Shelter Health Oakland - Downtown 31 24 1.3 Q2 CY2023


HCH Office Shelter Health Oakland - Downtown 38 26 1.5 Q2 CY2023


EOCP Crossroads  - Shelter Health Oakland - East 39 30 1.3 Q2 CY2023


Valley Wellness Center  - Shelter Health Pleasanton 13 6 2.2 Q2 CY2023


First United Methodist Church - Shelter Health San Leandro 20 12 1.7 Q2 CY2023
ACHCH Shelter Health - TOTAL 431 246 1.8


AHS Mobile Health Utilization, Q2 CY2023 
[April 1 - June 30, 2023]





		SUMMARY All Sites_Med+Enabling

		1_brick_primary_specialty

		2_street health

		3a_Shelter Basic

		3b_Shelter Detailed






Appendix B: 
Alameda County Health Care for the Homeless 
Prepared for: 


• Clinical Quality Subcommittee, 7/31/2023; and
• Internal Quality Meeting, 7/27/2023


Intro: 
As a Federally Qualified Health Center program, ACHCH produces and shares reports on QI/QA to support decision-making and oversight by 
key management staff and by the ACHCH Commission regarding the provision of ACHCH health center services. 


The following is a data dashboard of patients and services to-date, for the most recent three months of data available for Calendar Year 
(CY) 2023. Data include both: (1) patients served directly ACHCH employees, and (2) contracted services with community providers. 
Utilization data for Q2 of CY 2023 is presented in Appendix A.  


Demographics of patients served for this period: [reflecting Feb. – Apr. ‘23 (3 months)] 


The demographic composition of total ACHCH patients served to-date are: 
• Sex: The majority of patients served are men (63%).
• Age: More than half of total patients served are ages 50+, with more than 14% who are 65+ years old. Less than 3% of patients are


ages 24 or younger.
• Race and Ethnicity: 37% patients are Black/African American, 28% White, and 20% Latino/Hispanic.
• Insurance Status: A majority of patients (56%) are covered by Medi-Cal. A significant number are uninsured (22%) and are a mix of


people who are often Medi-Cal or HealthPAC eligible, but not enrolled.


Patient Demographics 







   
 


 


  


  
  


 
Source: Monthly Uniform Data System (UDS) patient and service utilization reports from HCH Access Database, February 1 to April 30, 2023. 







   
 


 


Supportive Services For ACHCH Program [Feb. – Apr. 2023]  


Service Category 


# Supportive 
Encounters; 
Feb. – Apr. 


2023 


% Supportive 
Encounters; 
Feb. – Apr. 


2023  


% Supportive 
Encounters; 


CY2022 


Assessment 139 1.7% 2.2% 


Benefits Assistance* 388 4.8% 4.7% 


Case Management* 2679 33.3% 37.2% 


Dental Case Management / Referral 195 2.4% 3.2% 


Food / Hygiene Assistance 1311 16.3% 17.5% 


Health Ed. / Supportive Counseling 1075 13.4% 10.8% 


Housing Assistance 516 6.4% 6.6% 


Interpretation 9 0.1% 0.1% 


Optometry Referral 1 0.0% 0.0% 


Other 291 3.6% 1.2% 


Referral 637 7.9% 9.4% 


SUD/Alcohol/MH Counseling / Referral* 3 0.0% 0.7% 


Transportation 801 10.0% 6.2% 
[All Supportive Services] 8045 100.0% 100% 


*Note: Category includes all possible options in the HCH Access Database.  


**Data excludes supportive services provided by Alameda Health System, which will be included in future reports.  


Selected Patient Diagnoses and Encounters 
 This table shows selected medical, mental health, and substance use disorder (SUD) conditions tracked by ACHCH as part of federal 
Health Center reporting. Data on patients with mental health and SUD diagnoses is incomplete and does not reflect the current level of 
effort by ACHCH staff and contractors who are responding to mental health and substance use disorder needs of patients. ACHCH staff and 
contractors continue to report difficulty with doing health maintenance (i.e., preventive care and screenings) in the field outside of a clinic 
setting, at the level needed by patients. 
 


Patients with Selected Diagnoses and Number of Encounters per Patient (Feb. – Apr. ’23) 


 Diagnosis 
#  


Encounters 
#  


Patients 
Encounters Per 


User 


Medical 


HIV 179 108 1.66 
Hepatitis C 109 67 1.63 
Asthma 90 73 1.23 
Diabetes Mellitus 438 274 1.60 
Hypertension 589 408 1.44 


Mental Health 


Anxiety/PTSD 1163 472 2.46 
Depression & Other Mood 
Disorders 


963 437 2.20 


Other Mental Disorders 572 318 1.80 


SUD 
Alcohol Related Disorders 183 109 1.68 
Substance Related Disorders 850 549 1.55 


 


Source: Monthly Uniform Data System (UDS) patient and service utilization reports from HCH Access Database, February 1 to April 30, 2023. 







   
 


 


Who is ACHCH Reaching?  


• The 2022 Alameda County Point-In-Time (PIT) count estimated that almost 10,000 people in Alameda County are literally 
homeless: living in a place not meant for human habitation, or in a shelter (HUD definition of homelessness). Of the almost 10,000 
people who are literally homeless, 73 percent are without shelter, and 27 percent are in shelters.  


• The PIT does not include people who are doubled-up (couch surfing), so the actual number of people who are homeless in 
Alameda County is far greater than 10,000. As a HRSA-funded health center, ACHCH serves the larger population of homeless 
including those who are doubled-up.  


• However with the exponential growth of the number of "literally homeless" in the last five years, Alameda County has increased 
focused on expanding services for the subset who are literally homeless:  increasing Street Health teams from 3 teams to 14 teams 
throughout the County, and designing ACHCH services to support the 14 Street Health teams and more than 30 shelters 
throughout the County.  


             


Source: 2022 ALAMEDA COUNTY HOMELESS COUNT AND SURVEY COMPREHENSIVE REPORT; (“PIT 2022”) 



https://everyonehome.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/12/2022-Alameda-County-PIT-Report_9.22.22-FINAL-3.pdf



		Intro:

		Demographics of patients served for this period:  [reflecting Feb. – Apr. ‘23 (3 months)]

		Patient Demographics

		Supportive Services For ACHCH Program [Feb. – Apr. 2023]



		Selected Patient Diagnoses and Encounters










ALAMEDA COUNTY HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS 
1404 Franklin Street, Suite 200 


Oakland, CA  94612 
TEL (510) 891-8950 
FAX (510) 832-2139 


www.achch.org 
 


 
STANDING ORDER FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF DEPOT MEDROXYPROGESTERONE ACETATE (DMPA) FOR 
THE PREVENTION OF UNINTENDED PREGANCY  
 
Purpose: The purpose of this order is to supplement current policy and procedures by providing guidance to 
Registered Nurses to identify individuals who would benefit from the use of DepoProvera to prevent unintended 
pregnancy. 
 
Background:. Depot medroxyprogesterone acetate (known as DepoProvera or DMPA) is an injectable progestin 
only contraceptive. DepoProvera is highly effective in preventing pregnancy and is injected every three months, 
eliminating the need for daily or weekly self-administration. DepoProvera prevents pregnancy by the inhibition 
of gonadotropin secretion, which inhibits follicular maturation and ovulation. DMPA also changes thickening of 
the cervical mucus and reduces tubal mobility. DMPA is a good alternative for women who wish to avoid or 
cannot take estrogen containing contraceptives or may not remember to use contraception that requires daily 
or weekly administration. DMPA is also a good choice for women who prefer a discreet method of 
contraception. DMPA is available in both intramuscular and subcutaneous injection formulations. This standing 
order applies to the intramuscular formulation (150 mg/1ml)  
 
Scope/Coverage: Under these standing orders, the following types of health care personnel are authorized to 
administer this treatment: 


• Registered Nurses 
 
Procedure: 


• Obtain medical including gynecologic history and STI risk assessment. Refer to STI protocol if client 
requires presumptive treatment or testing for sexually transmitted infection. 


• Discuss history of other contraceptive uses, past and present with client. Present all options 
available for contraception considering client preferences and medical history 


• Obtain current medication list  
• Physical exam or laboratory tests are not necessary before beginning DepoProvera. 
• Obtain date of last menstrual cycle, if known.  
• Rule out current pregnancy, either by LMP date or pregnancy test. 
• Patient Education:  


o Menstrual change occurs in all patients using DMPA. After initiation of DMPA irregular 
uterine bleeding lasting seven days or longer is common. The frequency and duration of 
bleeding decreases as duration of use increases. Amenorrhea becomes increasingly 
prevalent for clients who use DMPA for one year or longer. Amenorrhea is expected and 
reversible and does not indicate that is necessary to discontinue this contraceptive method. 


o Other common side effects include headache and mood changes.  
o Studies that examine the effect of DMPA on weight gain have not resulted in definitive 


conclusions. Concern about weight gain is a common reason for discontinuation of DMPA. 
o The use of DMPA does not prevent the transmission of sexually transmitted infection. 
o Fertility may be impaired for up to 18 months following discontinuation of DMPA. 


 
 
 
 







Plan 
• There are several start options for DMPA 


o Administer first injection on first day of menses, or within seven days of the onset of 
menses. This method does not require a backup contraceptive. 


o Any day start: back up contraception is needed for seven additional days. 
• Administer 150 mg/ml of Depot medroxyprogesterone acetate by deep intramuscular injection in 


the gluteal or deltoid muscle.  
• DMPA users require repeat injections every 3 months (13 weeks). Create a plan with the client for 


the next injection. 
• Women who present late for follow up injections can be administered their next dose of DMPA if 


they are less than 2 weeks late for their injection. If the client is more than 15 weeks from last dose, 
pregnancy should be excluded before medication administration. 


• If women present early for a repeat DMPA injection, it may be given early. 
• Attempt follow up with client in one month to assess tolerance to medication, side effects, and 


satisfaction with contraceptive method.  
 
Contraindications: DMPA should not be used by women with: 


• Known breast cancer 
• Are pregnant 
• Have severe cirrhosis, hepatocellular adenoma, diabetes nephrosis or vascular complications, 


hypertension, ischemic heart disease or multiple risk factors for atherosclerotic disease 
• Unexplained vaginal bleeding 
• Pregnancy planned within the next year 
• Long term use of corticosteroid therapy 
• Current use of aminoglutethimide 


 
References: UpToDate Patient Education: Hormonal Methods of Birth Control: Beyond the Basics.  


 
These orders shall remain in effect for all patients receiving medical care from Alameda County Health Care for 
the Homeless until rescinded.  


 
 


____________________________________    _________________ 
  
Medical Director       Date 


 
Effective Date: July 2023 
Next Review: January 2024 
Approved By: Dr. Kathleen Clanon, Medical Director, Alameda County Health Care Services Agency 
 


7/25/2023





				2023-07-25T16:01:47-0700

		Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com












ALAMEDA COUNTY HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS 
1404 Franklin Street, Suite 200 


Oakland, CA  94612 
TEL (510) 891-8950 
FAX (510) 832-2139 


www.achch.org 
 


 
STANDING ORDER FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF EMERGENCY CONTRACEPTION FOR THE PREVENTION OF 
UNINTENDED PREGNANCY  
 
Background: Emergency contraception decreases the risk of pregnancy after intercourse but before the 
establishment of a pregnancy. These methods can be employed after unprotected sexual intercourse or when a 
client is concerned about contraception failure (i.e. broken condom or missed contraceptive pills). Emergency 
contraception should also be offered to clients after recent sexual assault. Emergency contraception prevents a 
pregnancy from occurring, it does not terminate an already existing pregnancy. Emergency contraception must 
be administered within a certain time frame after the high-risk sexual encounter and is not meant to be used as 
a regular contraceptive method.  
 
Subjective  


• Medical History, including gynecologic history and STI risk assessment. Refer to STI protocol if client 
requires presumptive treatment or testing for sexually transmitted infection. 


• Medication history 
• History of sexual encounter, including date and time to the best of the client’s knowledge. 


Emergency contraception can be given to prevent unintended pregnancy from an encounter within 
the last five days. 


• The threshold for offering Emergency Contraception to a client within the specified time frame who 
is concerned about unintended pregnancy is low, client concern outweighs specific details about 
type of sexual encounter or contraception. 
 


Objective  
• Rule out current pregnancy. Date of last menstrual cycle is sufficient. If unknown, offer pregnancy 


test.  
 
Plan 
 


1) Administer 30 mg of Ullipristal (Ella Oral), one time dose, to be taken as soon as possible within five days 
of sexual encounter. 


2) Review pertinent client education points: 
a. Fertility rapidly returns after taking Ullipristal. Counsel the client on ongoing contraceptive 


methods.  
b. If ongoing contraceptive methods are initiated after taking Emergency Contraception, a barrier 


method is still required the first 14 days after EC administration. 
c. Ullipristal is not 100% effective in preventing pregnancy. If the client misses an expected 


menstrual cycle or experiences other symptoms of pregnancy, they should seek pregnancy 
testing. 


d. Menstrual bleeding patterns may be altered after administration (spotting is common) 
e. Additional common side effects include nausea/vomiting, headache, and dysmenorrhea.  


 
Contraindications: 


• Use is contraindicated in a known or suspected pregnancy. 
 
References: 







UpToDate: Patient Education: Emergency Contraception: the basics. 
 


These orders shall remain in effect for all patients receiving medical care from Alameda County Health Care for 
the Homeless until rescinded.  


 
 


____________________________________    _________________ 
  
Medical Director       Date 


 
 


Effective Date: July 2023 
Next Review: January 2024 
Approved By: Dr. Kathleen Clanon, Medical Director, Alameda County Health Care Services Agency 
 


7/25/2023





				2023-07-25T16:01:25-0700

		Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com












ALAMEDA COUNTY HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS 
1404 Franklin Street, Suite 200 


Oakland, CA  94612 
TEL (510) 891-8950 
FAX (510) 832-2139 


www.achch.org 
 


STANDIND ORDER FOR FAMILY PLANNING  
 
Background: Homelessness during pregnancy poses significant risks to both mothers and infants. Unhoused 
women experience difficulty accessing prenatal and general healthcare, increasing the incidence of unidentified 
high-risk conditions and poor pregnancy outcomes. Women who are unhoused often lack access to a consistent 
form of contraception, STI screening, and safe sex supplies. Reducing the rate of unintended pregnancies among 
homeless women reduces the overall prevalence of maternal and infant mortality and morbidity and increases 
the chances that women will achieve their health and housing goals that may be complicated by unintended 
pregnancy. 
 
Screening for contraceptive needs: All females of reproductive age should be screened for contraceptive needs. 
Inquiries around the need for contraception do not require in depth sexual histories. Questions such as “do you 
think you might get pregnant this year?” or “do you need a method to prevent pregnancy?” are sufficient. Any 
female who expresses the need for access to contraception should be offered contraceptive counseling. 
 
Examining client preference around contraceptive methods: After considering contraindications patient 
preference is the most important factor in choosing a method of contraception. Adherence to contraceptive 
methods is strongly correlated with patients’ participation in a shared decision-making process around method 
selection. Patient preference outweighs provider concerns about adherence or practicality. 
 
STI screenings: STI screenings should be offered to any sexually active female once a year, or more frequently in 
the presence of symptoms. A confirmed or suspected sexually transmitted infection is not an indication to delay 
initiation of contraception.  
 
Back up methods: Any client receiving contraception should also be offered condoms for back up prevention of 
pregnancy and protection from sexually transmitted infection Given the limited access to healthcare 
experienced by homeless women it is reasonable to offer emergency contraception for back up if contraceptive 
methods are inaccessible.  
 
Referrals for contraception: Several long-term reversible methods of contraception exist and may be more 
appropriate for women who are homeless including: 


• Hormonal intrauterine devices are 99.9% effective and last 3-8 years depending on manufacturer 
• Copper intrauterine devices are 99.9% effective and can be effective for up to 12 years. 
• Etonogestrel implants are placed in the subcutaneous tissue of the upper arm and are 99.9% effective at 


preventing pregnancy for 3 years.  
 


All long-term reversible forms of contraception can be removed by a healthcare provider at any point after 
initiation and removal results in an immediate return to fertility. Clients interested in these methods should be 
referred to a community health center or to Planned Parenthood. 
 
The following chart summarizes contraceptive methods that can be initiated by street and shelter health teams.  
 







ALAMEDA COUNTY HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS 
1404 Franklin Street, Suite 200 


Oakland, CA  94612 
TEL (510) 891-8950 
FAX (510) 832-2139 


www.achch.org 
 


 
 


 Efficacy (rate of pregnancy 
prevention over one year) 


Administration Benefits Special considerations 


Progestin only oral 
contraceptives (POPs) 


Perfect use: 99.7% 
 
Typical use: 93% 


Oral, daily, must be taken at 
the same time every day. 


Appropriate for women who cannot take 
estrogen 


Requires daily medication 
adherence for maximum efficacy 


Combined estrogen-
progestin oral 
contraceptives (COCs) 


Perfect use: 99.7% 
 
Typical use: 93% 


Oral, daily, preferable at the 
same time every day. 


Low side effect profile 
 
 


Excludes women who cannot 
take estrogen 
 
Requires daily medication 
adherence for maximum efficacy 


Depot 
Medroxyprogesterone 
acetate (DepoProvera) 


Perfect use: 99.8% 
 
Typical use: 96% 
 
 


Intramuscular injection, every 
13 weeks 


Private method of contraception 
 
Does not require regular self-
administration client 
 
Regular contact with client increases 
opportunities for sexual health 
screenings 


Delayed return to fertility 


Combined estrogen-
progestin transdermal 
patch 


Perfect use: 99.7% 
 
Typical use: 93% 


Transdermal. Patch is placed 
once a week for 3 weeks, then 
removed for one week. 


Available to women who cannot take 
estrogen 
 
Weekly administration may be easier 
than daily administration 


Excludes women who cannot 
take estrogen 
 
Cannot be given to women with a 
BMI > 30 


Emergency Contraception 
(Plan B) 


Effectiveness decreases as 
time from sexual encounter 
increases. 


Can be taken up to five days 
after an unprotected or under 
protected sexual encounter 


Appropriate for women who cannot take 
estrogen 
 
Available over the counter. 


Not intended to be a form of 
primary contraception 


 
 
 







ALAMEDA COUNTY HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS 
1404 Franklin Street, Suite 200 


Oakland, CA  94612 
TEL (510) 891-8950 
FAX (510) 832-2139 


www.achch.org 
 


 
_______________________________                      _________________________________ 
Medical Director                     Date 
 


Effective Date: July 2023 
Next Review: January 2024 
Approved By: Dr. Kathleen Clanon, Medical Director, Alameda County Health Care Services Agency 


 
 


7/25/2023





				2023-07-25T16:00:56-0700

		Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com












ALAMEDA COUNTY HEALTH CARE FOR THE HOMELESS 
1404 Franklin Street, Suite 200 


Oakland, CA  94612 
TEL (510) 891-8950 
FAX (510) 832-2139 


www.achch.org 
 


 
STANDING ORDER FOR ADMINIATRION OF COMBINED ESTROGEN-PROGESTIN ORAL CONTRACEPTIVES FOR 
THE PREVENTION OF UNINTENDED PREGANCY  
 
 
PURPOSE:  
 
The purpose of this order is to supplement current policy and procedures by providing guidance to Registered 
Nurses to identify individuals who would benefit from the use of combined estrogen-progestin oral 
contraceptives to prevent unintended pregnancy. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Combined estrogen-progestin oral contraceptives (COCs) are an oral contraceptive option that contain an 
estrogen and progestin component and are a safe contraceptive option for many women. COCs prevent 
pregnancy by suppressing ovulation by inhibition of luteinizing hormone (LH) and follicle stimulating hormone 
(FSH). COCs also provide protection from pregnancy by thinning the endometrial lining, thickening the cervical 
mucus, and impairment of tubal motility. When taken consistently COCs are a highly effective form of 
contraception, but inconsistent use dramatically increases the risk of unintended pregnancy. COCs are best 
suited to individuals with high medication adherence. COCs are categorized as monophasic (each active pill 
contains the same amounts of estrogen and progestin) and multiphasic (the amount of hormones in active pills 
vary). This standing order refers to the use of monophasic pills, which are easier to use and therefore have 
higher adherence rates.   
 
Scope/Coverage: Under these standing orders, the following types of health care personnel are authorized to 
administer this treatment: 


• Registered Nurses 
 
Procedure: 


• Obtain medical including gynecologic history and STI risk assessment. Refer to STI protocol if client 
requires presumptive treatment or testing for sexually transmitted infection. 


• Important factors to screen for include history of Venous thromboembolism, history of 
cardiovascular events or disease, history of cancer, liver disease, smoking, and diabetes. 


• Discuss history of other contraceptive uses, past and present with client. Present all options 
available for contraception considering client preferences and medical history 


• Obtain current medication list  
• Physical exam or laboratory tests are not necessary before beginning POPs. 
• Obtain date of last menstrual cycle, if known.  
• Rule out current pregnancy, either by LMP date or pregnancy test. 
• Patient Education:  


o Initiation of a COC is often associated with breast tenderness, nausea, and bloating. These 
symptoms usually resolve quickly. Unscheduled bleeding can occur and typically resolves 
within three months. Patients should be counseled that the occurrence of unscheduled 
bleeding does not indicate that contraception should be discontinued.  


o COC use is associated with an increased use of Venous thromboembolism (VTE). The 
absolute increased risk is low for most women and does not outweigh the benefits of 







contraception, particularly when considering the risk for VTE during pregnancy and the post-
partum period.  


o There is no evidence that COCs are associated with weight gain. 
o The use of COCs does not prevent the transmission of Sexually Transmitted Infection. 
o Missed pills are a common cause of contraceptive failure. 


  If one dose is missed, women should take the missed pills as soon as it is noticed 
and take the next pill as scheduled. 


  If two or more pills are missed, women should refer to medication-specific 
instructions provided by the drug manufacturer which provide detailed instructions 
according to when in the cycle pills were missed.  


 When in doubt, missing two or more pills indicates a need for the use of back up 
contraception until a new pack of pills is started.  


 
Plan:  


• There are several start options for combined estrogen-progestin oral contraceptives: 
o The quick start method is recommended. Women begin taking COCs on the day they receive 


them. 
o Sunday start: the woman starts the pill on the first Sunday of her menstrual cycle.  
o For purposes of easy instruction, women should use a backup method of contraception 


(condoms or abstinence) for the first 7 days after initiating COCs, regardless of which start 
method is employed. 


• Supply client with norethindrone 1.5 mg/ethinyl estradiol 30 mcg, with instructions to take one pill 
by mouth every day, at the same time every day. 


• Providing a one-year supply of COCs enhances continuation rates.  
• Attempt follow up with client in one month to assess tolerance to medication, side effects, and 


satisfaction with contraceptive method.  
 
Contraindications: Contraindications to combined estrogen-progestin contraceptives, including COCs, are largely 
related to the increased risk for VTE. The CDC and World Health organization list medical conditions that 
represent an “unacceptable health risk” and are an absolute contraindication to initiating combined estrogen-
progestin oral contraceptives. These conditions include:  
 


• Age 35 or older and smoking more than 15 cigarettes a day. 
• Multiple risk factors for arterial cardiovascular disease or 
• Hypertension 
• History of VTE 
• Ischemic heart disease 
• History of stroke  
• Valvular heart disease  
• Current breast cancer 
• Cirrhosis of the liver, or hepatocellular carcinoma 
• Migraine with aura 
• Diabetes mellitus of over 20 years duration or with nephropathy, retinopathy or neuropathy. 


The CDC and WHO also lists conditions for which the “theoretical or proven health risks of combined estrogen-
progestin oral contraceptives usually outweigh the advantages” of using the method. In general, COCs should 
not be used in individuals with these conditions unless no other method is available or acceptable to the patient 
and they have been counseled about potential risks. Seek medical direction prior to administering COCs in any 
client with the following conditions:  
 


• Age 35 or older and smoking less than 15 cigarettes a day 
• Hypertension adequately controlled on medications 







• Past breast cancer and no evidence of current disease for five years 
• Current gallbladder disease 
• Malabsorptive bariatric surgery 
• Superficial venous thrombosis 
• Inflammatory bowel disease. 


 
References: UpToDate Patient Education: Hormonal Methods of Birth Control: Beyond the Basics.  


 
These orders shall remain in effect for all patients receiving medical care from Alameda County Health Care for 
the Homeless until rescinded.  


 
 


____________________________________    _________________ 
  
Medical Director       Date 


 
 


Effective Date: July 2023 
Next Review: January 2024 
Approved By: Dr. Kathleen Clanon, Medical Director, Alameda County Health Care Services Agency 


 
 


7/25/2023





				2023-07-25T16:00:28-0700

		Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com









